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INDPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To,
The Members of Viaton Energy Private Limited

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

1. Opinion _
We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Viaton Energy Private
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of Cash
Flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statement including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (herein after referred to as “Ind AS financial statements™)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us,
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
March 2024, and its financial performance including comprehensive income, its cash flows and
the change in equity for the year ended on that.

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. There matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

4. Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to the following matter in Note 12 and 12.1 of the IND AS financial
statements which indicates that the company's accumiilated losses have Sfully eroded its net
worth as at the balance sheet date. These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. The appropriateness of the going concern assumption is dependent on the company's
ability to establish consistent profitable operations as well as raising adequate finance to meet




its outside obligations. The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going
concern basis for the reasons stated in the said Note No.42.

5. Emphasis of Matters
We draw attention to

a) Note no.31 and 31.1 wherein an amount of Rs.36.42 Crores (net) has been written off in
respect to loss of stock due to flooding, as per the management due to heavy rainfall in
July to October 2023 184,107 MT of the stock was damaged. We have placed reliance on
the confirmations and stock register as submitted by the management. We have not
carried out any independent stock-taking for the company. Due to this stock w/off the loss
of the company is overstated to this extent.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report but does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

6. Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
statements, that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind As) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules
issued thereunder. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act; for safeguarding the assets of the Company; for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of
Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.




7. Auditors Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objective are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.




From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

8. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
A. As required by Section143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The IND AS Balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive
income, the statement of cash flow and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account. -

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rule issued there
under.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

We have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the
Company as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date and our report dated 31/08/2024 as per Annexure
I expressed.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the

requ

irements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: In our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to
its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

C. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

1.

ii.

iil.

iv,

The details of the pending litigations are given in note 36. As per the information and
submissions made by the management there will be no impact on Ind AS financial
statements,

The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity




(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (*Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e), as provided under (a) and (h)
above, contain any material misstatement.

v.  The Company has not declared and paid dividends during the year.

vi.  Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024,
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during
the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with during the course of our audit.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April
1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
the preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024

D. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure II” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order

For V.K Beswal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101083W

CA Kunal V Beswal
Partner

M No.:131054 NG
UDIN: 24131054BKCDCW2

Place: Mumbai
Date: 31.08.2024.



Annexure I

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements and its operative effectiveness under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of Viaton Energy Private Limited
(“the Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial
controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the company of as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the criteria being specified by management. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the company’s business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI) and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR included obtaining an understanding of IFCoFR,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.

. Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles including the Ind AS. A company's IFCoFR
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2)provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind
AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles including Ind AS,




and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk that
IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the criteria being specified by management.

For V.K. BESWAL & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

oh—

CA Kunal V Beswal
Partner

M No.: 131054
UDIN: 24131054BKCDCW2667

Place: Mumbai
Date:31.08.204



" Annexure II to the IND AS Independent Auditor’s Report even date

With reference to the Annexure II referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the
Company on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024, we report the
following:

1. In respect of Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of
right-of-use assets.

b) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible Assets.

¢) The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment and
right-of-use assets so to cover all the assets once every three years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets Pursuant to
the program, certain Property. Plant and Equipment were due for verification during the year
and were physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

d) According to the information and details provided the all the immovable properties are held
in the name of the company.

e) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-
use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

f) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31% 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

2. In respect of Inventories:

a) As explained to us physical verification of inventory has been conducted during the year at
reasonable intervals by the management.

In our opinion, and as informed by the management there is no discrepancies of 10% or
more in the aggregate for each class of inventory and according to the information and
explanation given to us, the company has maintained proper records of inventories.

The coverage and procedures adopted by the management for the verification of the
inventory is found to be appropriate.

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees,
in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions based on security of current assets. The
Quarter end statements filed by the Company with the banks are substantially in
agreement with the books of accounts, except in the following cases.

(Amt Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As per financials As per returns filed Difference
with banks
As on June'2023
Inventories 3,290.50 2,960.58 329.92
Trade Payables 242.03 241.59 0.44
Trade Receivable 946,47 930.55 15.92
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As on Sept'2023

Inventories 3,648.32 3,325.80 322.52
Trade Payables 37.88 35.18 2.71
Trade Receivable 874.10 873.38 0.72
As on Dec'2023

Inventories 3,641.20 3,468.16 173.04
Trade Payables 763.59 763.59 -
Trade Receivable 721.95 706.03 15.92

As on March'2024

Inventories -
Trade Payables 3,468.48 3,439.05 29.43
Trade Receivable 137.11 142.53 -5.43

Please Refer Note 40 (2) of the Financial Statements for detailed notes and explanation on the
variances in the details as per the books of accounts and details submitted with the banks.

According to the information and explanation given to us, and on the basis of our examination of
the record of the company, during the year, the company has not made any investments in, provided
any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Therefore, the
provisions of clause 3(iii) of the said Order are not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, investments, guarantees and security to the parties covered under section 185 of
the Act. Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
Management, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of
the loans, investments, guarantees and securities provided by it, to the extent applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from public.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company in respect of products
where, pursuant to the Rules made by Central Government of India, the maintenance of cost records
has been prescribed under subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, and are of the
opinion that Prima Facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We
have not, however, made a detailed examination of records with a view to determine whether they
are accurate or complete.

In respect of Statutory Dues:

) According to record of the Company produced before us, the Company is generally regular in
depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
investor education and protection fund, employees" state insurance, income tax, sales tax,
service tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.




(b) According to the information and explanations given, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Income-Tax, sales tax, service tax, GST, customs duty, excise duty/cess and other
statutory dues applicable to it were outstanding as at 31.03.2024 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(¢c) According to the records of the company there are no dues of Income-Tax, sales tax, wealth
tax, service tax, GST, customs duty, excise duty/cess which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute. Except the following.

Name of the | Period to which the | Amount Involved Forum before which is
Statute amount relates (In Rs.) appeal is pending
Income Tax F.Y.2011-12 58,22,991 Hon’ble Telangana High
Court, Hyderabad
Income Tax F.Y.2012-13 49,28,250 | Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals)

8. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961

9. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company.

a) The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

b) The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or government authority.

¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

d) The Company has not utilized any funds on short term basis for any long term purposes.

) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company does
not have any subsidiaries, joint venture or associates and hence, reporting under clause
3(ix)(e) is not applicable.

f) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company does
not have any subsidiaries, joint venture or associates and hence, reporting under clause
3(ix)(e) is not applicable.

10. Please Note the Following

a) According to information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised moneys
during the year by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments). Accordingly, provisions of the clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

11. During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of equity shares in form of
rights issue as per the provisions of Section 42 and Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013.

12. Please Note the Following

a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the




13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud
by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the Management.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12)
of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

¢) According to information and explanations given to us, the company have not received any
whistle blower complaints during the year (and upto the date of this report), neither any
reported to auditor for consideration.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations provided by
the management, we are of the opinion that the company is not a Nidhi company. Hence, in our
opinion the clause does not apply to the company.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act
2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

The turnover of the Company does not exceed Rs.200 crores nor does it have outstanding loans
of Rs.100 crores from any banks or financial institutions hence, in our opinion the clause does
not apply to the Company.

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations provided by
the management, we are of the opinion that the company has not entered into any non-cash
transaction with directors or persons connected with him and no provisions of section 192 have
been contravened.

Please Note the Following

a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act. 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) and (b) of the
Order is not applicable.

b) In our opinion, the company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions 2016) and accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

¢) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions 2016) and accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

18. The Company has incurred cash loss in the current financial year and there was no cash loss in the

immediately preceding financial year. The details of which are as under:

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Net (Loss) (45,51,09,350) | (13,30,13,518)
Add/(Less): non-cash item Depreciation 3,83,19,456 4,08,17,006
Cash (Loss)/Profit (41,67,89,894) (9,21,96,512)




The figure of cash loss arrived at as above for the financial year under audit and the immediately
preceding financial year should be adjusted for the effect of all quantifiable qualification in the

audit report.

19. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
Accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi) (d) are not applicable.

20. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

21. The provision for contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) u/s 135, of the
Companies Act are not applicable to the company, hence reporting under this clause is not
applicable.

For V.K. BESWAL & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101083W

CA Kunal V Beswal
Partner

M No.: 131054
UDIN: 24131054BKCDCW2667

Place: Mumbai
Date: 31.08.2024



Viaton Energy Private Limited
CIN U40109MH2009PTC284562
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024

Rs in Lakhs
Asat Asat
PARTICULARS Note 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Nos, (Rs.) (Rs.)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
a) [Property, Plant & Equipment 2A(1) 7,810,07 7,947.25
b)|ROU Assets 2A[i) - 11.79
c)|Capital work-in-progress 2B - -
d)|Intangible Assets 2C 1.05 0.79
e)|Deferred tax assets(net) 3 2,610.05 1,429.66
f)[Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Asset 4 62.70 57.98
g)|Other Non current Assets 5 10.85 575
Total Non Current Assels 10,494.73 9,453.22
Current assets
a)|Inventories 6 3,562.87 3,642.55
b)|Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 1,533.72 540.34
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 24.38 29.50
(iii) Other Financial Asset 9 15:23 4.70
¢)|Other current assets 10 31.48 2,439.53
Total current Assets 5,167.68 6,656.61
TOTAL ASSETS 15,662.40 16,109.84
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1) |Equity
a) |Equity Share capital 11 5,100.00 5,100.00
b)|Other Equity 12 -8,258.03 -4,885.69
Total Equity -3,158.03 214.31
2) |Non-current liabilities
a) |Financial Liablities
(i) Borrowings i3 14,354.45 12,481.40
(ia) Lease liabilities 14 - -
(1i) Other Financial Liabilities 15 2,862.39 1,668.77
b)|Proevisions 16 21.88 22.54
Total Non Current Liabilities 17,238.72 14,172.71
3)|Current liabilities
a)|Financial Liahilities
(i) Borrowings 17 786.34 975.42
(ia) Lease liahilities 18 - 5.49
(ii) Trade payables 19 654.69 631.53
(1ii) Other Financial Liabilities 20 39.44 93.93
b)|Other Current liahilities 21 82.37 7.95
c)|Provisions 22 18.87 8.49
Total Current Liabilities 1,581.71 1,722.82
Total Liabilities 18,820.43 15,895.53
Total Equity and Liabilities 15,662.40 16,109.84

The Notes are an integral part of the balance sheet & profit & loss account

As per our report of even date

For V.K.Beswal & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No.: 101083W /@,/,,,n

C.A. Kunal V Beswal
Partner
Membership Number- 13105\4’\;
Place : Mumbai

Date : 31/08/2024 |

o

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Viaton Energy Private Limited

Mae
m—
Amit Dalmia Sushil Goenka
Director Director
DIN:00210919 DIN: 00533097
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Viaton Energy Private Limited
CIN U40109MH2009PTC284562

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31st March, 2024

Rs in Lakhs
As at As at
PARTICULARS Note 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Nos. (Rs.) (Rs.)

REVENUE:
Revenue from Operations 23 5,197.54 4,782.53
Other income 24 32.57 4681
Total Income 5,230.11 4,829.35
EXPENSE:
Cost of materials consumed 25 3,176.59 3.654.97
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 66.05 116.99
Changes in inventories of Stock in Trade 26 -0.54 0.02
Employee benefits expenses 27 463.62 471.78
Finance costs 28 964.96 455.85
Depreciation and amortization expenses 29 383.19 408.17
Other expenses 30 1,085.34 1,051.71
Total Expense 6,139.20 6,159.48
Loss before Exceptional items and tax -909.09 -1,330.14
Exceptional items (Refer Note 31.1) 31 3,642.00 -
Loss before Tax -4,551.09 -1,330.14
Tax expenses:
Current tax A -
Deferred tax (credit) / charge 1,180.39 -99.37
(Loss) for the Year (A) -3,370.70 -1,429.51
Other comprehensive income:
i, Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - Acturial Gain/(Loss) -1.63 232
ii. Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profitor loss - -
iii, Items that will be reciassified to profit or loss - -
iv. Income tax relating to itemns that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Other Comprehensiv Income for the year (B) -1.63 2.32
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) -3,372.34 -1,427.18
Earning per equity share:
Basic and diluted (Face value Rs.10/- per share) -6.61 -2.97

The Notes are an integral part of the balance sheet & profit & loss account

As per our report of even date
For V.K.Beswal & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No.: 101083W

C.A. Kunal.V.Beswa
Partner )
Memhership Number- 131054

Place : Mumbai
Date : 31/08/2024

Q:f::is

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Viaton Energy Private Limited

i T

~
Sushil Goenka
Director
DIN: 00533097

Amit Dalmia
Director
DIN:00210919




Viaton Energy Private Limited
CIN U40109MH2009PTC284562

Cash Flow Statement For the year ended 31st March, 2024

Rs in Lakhs
Asat As at
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
(Rs.) (®s.)
A. |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) before exceptional Items and tax as per statement of profit and Loss -909.09 -1,330.14
Adjustment For :
Deprecialion 3R3.19 40817
Acturial Gain/(Loss) on Vaiuation of Gratuity -1.63 2.32
Interest & Finance charges 964.96 455 RS
Operative Profit/(T.oss) before Working Capital Changes 437.42 -463.79
Adjustment For :
Increass/ (Decrease) in Inveniories 79.68 -255.94
Inerease/ (Decrease) in Trade Receiv able -993.38 841.49
Increase! (Decrease) in Short term Loans And Advances -
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Assels 2,397.52 -2,324.87
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade Payables 23.16 -551.61
Tncrease! (Decrease) in Lease liabilities -19.52
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liahilities 1,193.62 -23.47
Increasa/ (Decrease) in Other Current Liahilities 19.92 0.16
Increase / (Decreass) in Shart term provision -0.66 -7.77
Cash Generation from Operations 3,157.28 -2,805.32
Direct Taxes - -
Fxceptional Items -3,642.00 -
Net Cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities -484.72 -2,805.32
B. |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Changes in Fixed Assets -234.48 -680.21
Changes in Capital work-in-progeess - a
Changes in Other Non current Assets -9.83 3332
Net cash flow from/ ( used in) investing activities -244.31 -646.89
C. |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Changes in Other Financial Liahilities - 332.99
Changes in Lease liahilities -5.49 -4.02
Changes in Non Current Borrowing 1,873.05 3,437.06
Changes in Current Borrowing -189.08 42.64
Finance Charges -964.96 -455 85
Changes in Long Term Provisions 1039 -1.27
Net cash flow from/ (used in) financing activities 723.90 3,351.55
D. |Net Change In Cash And Cash Equilanis (A+B+C) -5.12 -100.67
Cash and Cash Equivaienis (Opening) 29.50 130.17
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Closing) 24.38 29.50
Notes | A] Figuios in brackets reprosent cash ontllows,
B] Previous year figures have been regrouped wherever neccssary.

As per our report of even date
For V.K.Reswal & Associates
Chartered Accountunls
Firm Reg No.: 101083W

C.A. Kunal.V.Beswal
Partner
Membership Nurmber- 131054

Place : Mumbai
Date : 31/08/2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Viaton Energy Private Limited

Amit Dalmia
Director

DIN:00210919

’—-""‘—-
Sushil Goenka
Director
DIN: 00533097




Viaton Energy Private Limited
CIN: U40109MH2009PTC284562
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31% March 2024.

Note 1 Notes to the Financial Statements.
I Company overview

Viaton Energy Private Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated on 07/01/2009 as a Private
Limited company. The registered office of the Company is located at 2nd floor Cama cold
storage,sitaram jadhav marg industrial EST, Delisle road,lower parel Mumbai 400 013 MH
INDIA. The Power plant is situated at Village Khokhar Khurd, Ramdittawala Bhaini Bagha
Road, Tehsil & Dist Mansa, Punjab 151 505.The company is primarily engaged in the
generation of Electricity from Renewable sources.

The Company has an installed(generation) capacity of 10 MW in Khokhar Khurd ,Mansa Punjab.

I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024.

1. Basis of preparation of financial Statements

i.Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

ii. Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following:

1) Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;
2) Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value;

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in th/f‘/‘fﬁah:él;‘:ﬂ
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follow Ciléié’a:ed\o';f@"\\‘
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a wholg:: { w \?l
Nl
‘(/j,m _'é’_gy,}
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Viaton Energy Private Limited

CIN: U40109MH2009PTC284562
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3 1%t March 2024,

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level mput that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

iii.Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle (not exceeding twelve months) and other criteria set out in the
Schedule III to the Act.

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current and non-
current classification.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s
normal operating cycle;

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(c) it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or

(d) it is cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets all other assets are
classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a) it is expected to be settled in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded,;

(c) it is due to be settled within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or

(d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the balance sheet date

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other
liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Companyhas identified twelve months as its
operating cycle for the purpose of current / non - current classification of assets and
liabilities.

2. Use of Estimates = s
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires m n\?ﬁéﬁ@ﬁt-\,to
make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments an *ﬁssump’ﬁiw"{)j:i‘_s

i
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affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts Qf éf*%ﬂ, and
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Viaton Energy Private Limited
CIN: U40109MH2009PTC284562
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.

liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and reported amounts of revenue and expenditure during the period. Application of
accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective
judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed below.
Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of
changes in circumstances surrounding these estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the
financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction COsts
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

i.  Financial Assets
A. Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to
the fair value on initial recognition. Purchase and sale of financial assets are
recognised using trade date accounting.

B. Subsequent measurement
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding

C. Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the
Company’s balance sheet) when:

- The right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
- The Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without 11}-gtfq:r'i_ﬁ_l,‘dclay
to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and cither (a) the/Gpmpanyhas
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or ( {%ﬁnﬁgﬁ




Viaton Energy Private Limited
CIN: U40109MH2009PTC284562

Notes to financi

al statements for the yeér ended 31% March 2024.

has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company
has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL)
model, for evaluating impairment of financial assets other than those measured at
fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal
to:

* The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from
those default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date); or

* Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all
possible default events over the life of the financial instrument)

The Company has receivables against power supply to Punjab State Power
Corporation Ltd which is a State Governmentowned enterprise. The Company has
been generally regularly receiving its power sale dues from PSPCL before due
dates most of the time. In case of rare delayed payment, the company is entitled to
receive, and has received, interest as per the terms of agreement. Hence, they are
secured from credit losses in the future.

ii.  Financial Liabilities and equity instruments
A. Classification as debt or equity

C. Subsequent measurement

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments - An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

. Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of
directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are directly recognised in the

Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost. %‘ﬁ
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Viaton Energy Private Limited
CIN: U40109MH2009PTC284562
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.

iil.

iv.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method or FVTPL. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit
and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the Effective
Interest Rate (EIR) amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

D. Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial
recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets
which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are
debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business
model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be
infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business
model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the
immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The
Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including
impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

4. Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is
being made.

Revenue from sale of energy is recognized on the accrual basis in accordance with the
provisions of Power Purchase Agreement. Claims for delayed payment charges and any other
claims, which the company is entitled to under the Power Purchase Agreement/are accounted
for in the year of acceptance. :;?f” o
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Viaton Energy Private Limited
CIN: U40109MH2009PTC284562
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31* March 2024,

The Company applies the revenue recognition criteria to each separately identifiable
component of the sales transaction as set out below:

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for
discounts and other incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue
also excludes taxes or other amounts collected from customers.

Sale of goods:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership in the goods are transferred to the buyer as per the terms of the contract, there is
neither continuing managerial involvement with the goods nor effective control over the goods
sold, it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Company, the costs incurred or to be
incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably and the amount of revenue can
be measured reliably.

Sale of power

Revenue from sale of power is recognized as and when significant certainty as to the
measurability and collectability exists and actual billing is made to the customers once the
actual consumption of power is confirmed from the regulatory authorities.

Interest Income:
Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and rate applicable.

Late payment charges and interest on delayed payment for power supply are recognized based
on reasonable certainty to expect ultimate collection.

For all Financial Assets measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR) i.e. the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial
assets. The future cash flows include all other transaction costs paid or received, premiums or
discounts if any, etc.

5. Property, plant and equipment:
a) Property, Plant and Equipment up to March 31, 2018 were carried in the Balance Sheet in
accordance with Indian GAAP. The Company has elected to avail the exemption granted by
IND AS 101, “First time adoption of IND AS” to regard those amounts as deemed cost at the
date of the transition to IND AS (i.e. as on April 1, 2018).

b) An item of PPE is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably.

¢) PPE are initially measured at cost of acquisition/construction including deco

i
restoration cost as estimated by management wherever required. .
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CIN: U40109MH2009PTC284562
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31* March 2024.

d) After initial recognition, Property, Plant and Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation/ amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

¢) Spares parts (procured along with the Plant & Machinery or subsequently) which meet the
recognition criteria are capitalized. The carrying amount of those spare parts that are replaced
is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or upon
disposal. Other spare parts are treated as “stores & spares” forming part of the inventory.

f) Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on Straight-line basis, in accordance with the useful
life prescribed in Schedule II of the New Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation for assets
purchased / sold during a period is proportionately charged. Intangible assets are amortized
over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, commencing
from the date the asset is available to the Company for its use. Additions to fixed assets are
depreciated from the date it put to use and deletions are depreciated up-to the date of sale, on
pro-rata basis. Fixed assets individually costing Rs.5,000 or less are fully depreciated on
purchase.

A. Derecognition of PPE :

An item of Property, plant and equipments is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipments is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

6. Intangible assets:

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment Intangible
assets are amortized over the irrespective individual estimated useful lives on a straight — line
basis, from the date that they are available for use .The estimated useful life of an identifiable
intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand,
competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry, and known
technological advances ) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the
expected future cash flows from the asset. Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed
periodically including at each financial year end.

A. Derecognition of Intangible assets :

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, and are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

7. Impairment of tangible & intangible assets
An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value.
An impairment loss is charged to the profit & loss account as and when an asset is identified as
impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has
been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

A8 A0\
- Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recovel'zéﬂ-/itjr"‘;}v‘}}é“‘n:?yer
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recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of
the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis
unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset

belongs.

- If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds
the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the Statement
of Profit and Loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount,
provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognized forfor the asset in prior years.

8. Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance
of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if
fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly
specified in an arrangement.

i. Finance Lease:

a. Leases where the Company has substantially transferred all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the related assets are classified as finance leases. Assets under finance
lease are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the lower of the fair value or
the present value of minimum lease payments and a liability is created for an equivalent
amount.

b. Each lease rental paid is allocated between the liability and the interest cost, so as to
obtain a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability for each period.

c. Assets given under a finance lease are recognized as a receivable at an amount equal to
the net investment in the lease. Lease income is recognized over the period of the lease
so as to yield a constant rate of return on the net investment in the lease.

ii. Company under operating leases:

The leases which are not classified as finance lease are operating leases.

a. The Company as a lessee The Company accounts for each lease component within the
contract as a lease separately from non-lease components of the contract and allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components. . [ L “;_"
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b. The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset
for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset
measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs
to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring
the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right of use assets is measured at an
amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to that lease recognized in the balance sheet immediately before the date
of initial application.

c. The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases
with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt
cither the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate
for the portfolio as a whole. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable
lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate
the lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount
to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The Company
recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the
nature of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to
sero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company
recognizes any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss.

d. The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term
leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the
underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

iii. Transaction to Ind AS 116

a. Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Second Amendment Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the-existing

VKA

lease standard, Ind AS 17 leases and other interpretations. Ind AS 1, %J/seﬁ‘"e{lj;\’{he
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure oé;legse\;g‘{br
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9.

10.

11.

both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model
for lessees.

b. The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-
term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which
the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases
are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Cash and cash equivalents include balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal
and usage. For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents
comprise of cash at banks and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdraft as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

Inventories
Inventory is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

Employee Benefits

i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

ii) Post-employment obligations:

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
(a) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity and

(b) Defined contribution plans such as provident fund

Gratuity obligations

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans
is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the
fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries
using the projected unit credit method.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in eq}it;_and in the

1 0,

balance sheet. /
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12.

13.

14.

Defined Contribution Plans
Defined Contribution Plans such as Provident Fund etc., are charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss as incurred. The Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any

Taxation

a. Provision for current tax is made with reference to taxable income computed for the
accounting period, for which the financial statements are prepared by applying the tax rates
as applicable.

b. Deferred tax is recognized subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing differences
being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one
period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Such deferred tax is
quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted as on the Balance
Sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized and carried forward to extent that there is a
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets can be realized.

Borrowing Cost:

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying tangible assets that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
Capitalisation of borrowing cost ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying tangible assets for their intended use are complete.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

a) Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Such provisions are determined based on management estimate of
the amount required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. The expense relating to
a provision net of any reimbursement is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss or in the
carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion.

b)If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

¢) Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events not wholly within the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow

A Y\, the

of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated-reliab
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of out
benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis
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15.

management/ independent experts. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and are
adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.

d) Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial
staterments when inflow of economic benefits is probable on the basis of judgment of
management. These are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately
reflected in the financial statements.

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in
accordance with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’. The
evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events has been made on the basis of best
judgment by management regarding probable outflow of economic resources.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share :Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued
during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into account the after income tax effect of
interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and the
weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

16. The Code on Social Security, 2020

The Code on Social Security 2020 ('Code") has been notified in the Official Gazette on 29"
September, 2020.The Code is not yet effective and related rules are yet to be notified. Impact
if any of the change will be assessed and recognized in the period in which said Code
becomes effective and the rules framed thereunder are notified.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board ofDirectors

For V.K.Beswal & Associates
Chartered Accountants ( 2 : o -
Firm Reg. No. 101083W

CA Kunal V Beswal kﬁ({
Partner

-————"‘::'—'-"‘_ K)k_/—
Amit Dalmia Sushil Goenka
Director Director
DIN:00210919 DIN: 00533097

M. No.131054

Place: Mumbai
Date: 31/08/2024
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Statement of Changes in Equity

A. Equity share capital

Particulars

Numbers of Shares

Balance as at 1 April 2022

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the current
reporting period

Changes in equity share capital during the year

510

510

5,100.00

5,100.00

Balance as at March 31, 2023

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors

510

5,100.00

Restated balance at the beginning of the current
reporting period
Changes in equity share capital during the year

5,100,00

Balance as at 31 March 2024

5,100.00

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period eriurs

Restated balance at the beginning of the current
reporting period
Changes in equity share capital during the year

5,100.00

Balance as at 31 March 2024

5,100.00

Rs in Lakhs

B. Other Equity

Particulars

Reserves and surplus

Retained earnings

Total other Equity

Balance as at 1 April 2022
Lass for the Year

Other camprehensive income
Balance as at 31 March 2023

(3,458.51)
(1.429.51)
232

(3,458.51)
(1,429.51)
2.32

(4,885.69)

(4,885.69)

Balance as at 1 April 2023
Loss for the Year
Other comprehensive income

Balance as at 31 March 2024

(4,885.69)
(3,370.70)
(163)

(4,885.69)
(3,370.70)
(163)

(8,258.03)

(8,258.03)

As per our report of even date
For V.K.Beswal & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No.: 101083W

aiing Lines / ,v”‘
C.A. Kunal V. Beswal 20;/&:{"/_
- 7

Partner
Meimbership Number- 131054

Place : Mumbai
Date : 31/08/2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Viaton Energy Private Limited

Amit Dalmia
Director
DIN:00210919

—_—

Sushil Gopnka
Director
DIN: 00533097
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Note - 2A: Property, plant and equipment

(1] Owned Assets Rs in Lakhs
Particulars FREEHOLD - LAND | BUILDINGS - NONFACTORY | BUILDINGS- FACTORY PLANT & MACHINERY OFFICE £QUIPMENTS COMPUTERS E_._._.M.F..M_.._WMB TOOLS & TACKLES |  BOREWELL CONCRETE MIXER VEHICLES DGSET VIBRATOR WEIGHBRIDGE TOTAL

Gross Carrylng amount

AsatApril 1, 2023 22049 1,829.13 8,672.59 27.31 16,32 41.04 S.14 091 1.05 47.72 941 1.70 44.78 11,256.75
Additions 243.13 0.71 0.57 0.70 245.10 |
Disposals - - - -15.34 s & * ~ » 2 L] - = = <15.34
Adjustments - - x - : = £ - e ] * - = > L
Reclassiflcition of asset held - - - - - E = : = A ] = - - -
Balance as at 31st March 2024 220.49 339.17 1,829.13 890037 28.02 16.89 41.04 5.14 0.91 1.05 48.41 9.41 1.70 44.78 11.486.51
Accumulated Depreclation

AsatApril 1,2023 = 48.81 522.79 2,582.58 24.08 13.91 26.11 3.04 0.56 ©.99 9.12 0.77 42.54 3,309.49
Additions - 57.98 5.36 299.75 0.82 115 2.40 0.30 0.03 0.12 370.34
Disposals - = -3.40 = = 2. - s = - - 3 - -3.40
Reclassification of asset held - - - = - - = L 3 = ~ 2 -] = -
Balance as at 31st March 2024 - 106.79 a Z,878.93 24.91 15.06 28.51 3.34 0.59 0.99 36.61 9.12 0.89 42.54 3,67643
Net Carrying amount

Balance is at 31st March 2024 220.49 232,37 1,300.97 6,021.44 3.2 184 12.52 1.81 0.32 0.05 11.81 0.28 0.82 224 7,810.07
Gross Carrying amount

As atApril 1, 2022 22049 339.17 1,829.13 7,995.18 26.74 14.76 40,36 5.14 0.91 1.05 47.72 9.41 1.70 44.78 10,576.53 |
Additlons - - - 677.40 0.57 1,57 0.67 - L] € ® . = = 680.21
Disposals - - - . = 5 3 - - = * = . - -
Adiustments - - - - - - - = - = “ = = > -
Reclassitication of asset held - - = - 3 = = = - - 3 = 2 = =
Balance as at 31st March 2023 220.49 339.17 1,829.13 8,672.59 27.31 16.32 41.04 514 091 1.05 4772 9.41 1.70 44.78 11,256.75
Accumulated Pepreciation

As atAprll 1, 2022 - 43.45 464,81 2,271.20 23.31 12.53 273 053 099 31.79 9.12 0.65 42.54 2,926.39
Additions - 5.36 57.98 31138 0.77 137 3.38 0.32 0.03 - 240 - 0.12 = 383.10
Disposals - - - - - = . t = = = = = - <
Reclassification of asset held - - - = - - = = - . = = = - -
Balance as at 3ist March 2023 - 48.81 522.79 2,582.58 24.08 13.91 26.11 3.04 0.56 0.99 34.18 9.12 0.77 42.54 3,309.49
Net Carrving amount

Palance as at 31st March 2023 22049 290.36 1,306.33 6,090.01 3.23 242 14.92 2.10 0.35 0.05 13.54 0.28 0.94 2.24 7.947.25
(11} :Leased assets

Leased assets® Leased assets Total

Gross Carrying amount

Balance as at 1st April 2023 11.79 11.79

Add: Additions during the year .| 0.65 0.85

Less: Depreciation 1268 12.64

Halance as at 315t March 2024 - -

Gross Carrying amount

Ralance as at 1st April 2021 3670 36.70

Add: Additions during the year

Liess: Depreciadon 24.91 24.91

Balance as at 315t March 2022 1179 11.79

*Right to use of Barren Land




Schedule 2B :

Particulars C-WIP Total
Gross Carrying amount

Balance as at 1st April 2023
Add: Additions during the year - -
Lzss: Deletion during the year
Balance as at 31st March 2024 - -

Gross Carrying amount

Balance as at 1st April 2022 20.34 20.34
Add: Additions during the year 4.56 456
Less: Deletion during the year 24.90 24.90
Balance as at 31st March 2023 - -

Capital work-in-progress ageing (Amount in Rs.)

Ageing for capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2024 is as follows
CWIP To be completed in

2-3 years More than 3 years
Project1 -

Ageing for capital work-in-progress as at March 31,2023 is as follows |
To be completed in

CWIP
2-3 years More than 3 years

Froject 1 -
Note - 2C :Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets Software Total
Gross Carrying amount
As at April 1, 2023 7.93 7.93
Additions 0.47 0.47
Disposals - 3
Reclassification of asset held - -
Balance as at 31st March 2024 8.40 8.40
Accumulated Amortization
As at April 1, 2023 7.13 6.98
Additions 0.22 0.22
Rectassification of asset held = d
Balance as at 31st March 2024 7.35 7.35
Net Carrying amount
Balance as at 31st March 2024 1.05 1.05
Gross Carrying amount
AsatApril 1, 2022 7.93 7.93
Additions - -
Disposals - »
Reclassification of asset held - -
Balance as at 31st March 2023 7.93 7.93
Accumulated Amortization
As at April 1, 2022 6.98 6.98
Additions 0.16 0.16
Reclassification of asset held * -
Balance as at 31st March 2023 7.13 7.13
Net Carrying amount
Balance as at 31st March 2023 0.79 0.79

Ind AS 101 Exemption:

The Company has availed the exemption available under Ind AS 101, whereas the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment & intangible assets has been carried forwarded at the amount as determined under the previous GAAP, Considering
the frequently asked questions (FAQ) issued by the Institule of Chartered Accountants of India on June 30, 2016, regarding
application of deemed cost, the company has dise losed the Cost net of accumulated depreciation/amortisation
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PARTICULARS
Note - 3 : Deferred Tax Assets

(A) Deferred tax liability

On Account of Owned Fixed Assets
Net Block as per Companies Act

Net Block as per Income Tax Act

On Account of Leased Fixed Assets
ROU Assets
Lease liahility

Deferred tax liability (A)

(B) Deferred tax assets
Others

Business Loss
Unabsorbed Depreciation
Provision far Gratuity

ECL provisions on Debtors
Share Issue Exp Balance

Deferred tax assets(B)

Deferred Tax Asset (Net) (Closing)
Less : Deferred Tax Assat (Net) (Opening)
To be credited to the profit and loss account

7.811.12
3,163.55

4,647.57

13.01
5.86

-7.14

7,025.26
7,617.57
2603
7.50
2.72

14,679.08

Asat

31st March, 2024

7,94805
3,395 68
4,552.37
1,20837
26.46
16.16
-10.30
-1.86
1,206.51
2,862.73
7,145.43
2853
4.07
10,040.76
3,816.56
2,610.05
1,429 66
1,180.39

Rs in Lakhs

As at

31st March, 2023

1,183 62

-2.68

1,180.94

2,610.60

1,429.66
1,529.03
-99.37
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PARTICULARS

Note - 4 ; Other Financial Asset

(1) Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good

Asat
31st March, 2024

P

With Others 355
(ii) Others
. Balance with Government Authorities
Unsecured, considered good
With Income Tax Authority
Advance Tax, TDS & TCS 5915
ess:- Frovision for Tax - 59.15
Total 62.70

Note -5 : Other Non current Assets
Orhers
Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid Expenises.

Toial

Note - 6 : Inventories

(At lower of cost or net realisable value)
[As certified and vaiued by the Munagement]
Stock of Fuel

Stoe k of Twine

Sioies, spares and others

Total

Note - 7 : Trade Receivables
Secured, considered good

Un red, Considered Good
Less:- Provissional of ECL
Total

Trade Receivables

The average credit period for the Company's receivables is 60 days from receipt of the Invoice by Punjab Staie P
94, depending on the time of early payment No int

Power Purchase Agreement (PPA)ESPCL dedurts cash dis

Junt ranging from 1% to 2

1085

—

1085

346848
0.70
93.69
3,562.87

1,541.22
-7.50
1,533.72

date, as per the PPA. Thereafier, inteest is charged at the rates spevifiedin the PPA,

The Company has used 2 prachic 2l expedient by ©
account historical credit loss experience and 2¢
the rates 25 given in the provision matrix, The pro

Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

\puting the expected cr edit loss allowance for
sted for forward lnoking infarmation,
on matrix at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

The expected credit loss allowa

54.48

ower Corporation Ltd (PSPCL), the
erest is charged on trade receivables till the due

The Company has receivables against power s ipply to Puniab State Fower Corporation Ltd whichis a State Guvernment owned enterprise.

The Company has been generally regularly recel ving its power sale dues from PSPCL hefore due dares mast of the time. In

receive, and has received, interest as per the terms of agreement. Hence, they are se ured from credit losses in the future.

Trade Receivahles ageing schedule as at 31st March 2024

cas

Rs in Lakhs

Asat
31st March, 2023

—_— ———

54.48
57.98

153332
0.16
109.07
3,642.55

54034

540.34

sole mandated customer, as per the

trade receivahles hased on a provision matrix The provision matrix takes into
nee is based on the aging of the days the receivables are due and

2 af rare delayed payment, the company is eni itied to

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars lLess than 6 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total (Rs.)
manths years
M"“‘l"'“—“] Trade receivables - consider od good 1,466 21 - 0.72 - - 1,466.93
(i) Undisputed Trade Re« eivables - which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(ir) Undisputed Trade Re civahles - credit Impaired - - - = - -
(iv]) Dispuied Trade Re sivahles-co 3 d 17.76 1391 1271 14.71 15.20 74.29
(v) Disputed Trade Rec sivahles - which ha
increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed Trade Rec wivahles - credil impairad - - - - - -
vii] Provission of ECL -7.50
TOTAL 148397 | 13.91 1343 1471 15.20 1,533.72




Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March,2023

Outstanding for following periods from due dale of payment
Particulars Less than 6 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 Total
maonths _years

(i) Undispuied Trade receivables - considered goc 42529 2.51 - - - 488.80
(11) Undispuied Trade Recelvahles - which have signific
increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(11} Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit im =d - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Rec sivables-considered gos 891 12.71 14.71 15.20 - 51.54
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant

increass in credit risk - - - - - -
{vi] Disputed Trade Receivables - credit I paired - - - - -
TOTAL 49521 1522 14.71 1520 - 540.34
Note - 8 : Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

In current accounts 1292 2422

Cash on hand 11.46 528

Total 24.38 29,50

Note - 9 ; Other Financial Asset

Balance with Government Anthurities

Unsecured, considered good
With fncome Tax Authority
Advanve Tax, TDS & TCS 577 4,70
Laws:- Provision for Tax - 577 - 4.70

With Giliers 5.47 -

Total 1523 470

Note - 10 : Other current assets

Unsecured, considered good

(i) Advance to suppliers 1015 241016

(ii) Advance to Employess 3.09 171

(11} Prepaid Expense: 18.23 27 f&

Total 3148 2,43953
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024 Rs in Lakhs
Note ;11 Share Capital
A Asat Asat
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Numbers Rs. Numbers Rs.
Authorised
Eruity Shares of Re.10 zach 520 8,200 00 520 5,200 00
520 5 300 00 S20 £.200 00
Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid up
Fuyuity Shares of Rs 10 zach 510 5,100 00 510 5,100 00
Less : Calls in Arrears - ¥
Total [ 510 510000 510 5100 00
B Reconciliation of the numher of shares ouistanding is set out below
Asat Asat
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Numbers Rs. Numhbers Rs.
510 5,100 00 415 4,150 00
= 95 9580 00
At the end of the year F 510 5,100.00 510 5,100.00

€ Rights. Preferences and restriciions atiached to equily shares
The ¢ om pany hag anly one class of shares referre ity shares havinga par value of 1210 per share.
In the event of liguidation of the company the holders af equity 3 +will be entitled to recrive T
The disteibution will bein progs to the nusmber of aquity shares held by the shareholders.

D Detail af shareholders holding more than §% of shares in the company

Each holder of equity shares is sntitled o one vote per share.

2zeets of the company. after distribution of all preferential amounts

As at31st March, 2024

As at31st March, 2023

Particulars
No. of Shares 9% of Holding No. of Shares M__
3F industries Lid 356 6975 356 6375
M /= Crestive Estate LLP 133 2613 133 2613
ent Seven Garment and Testiles Private L 21 412 21 412
Mo of Shares pledied ot atherwise sncumbersd | 125 2a41% | 125 | 2441%
E  Shares held by holdin fuliimate holding company
et ‘As at31st March, 2024 i I As at31st March, 2023
No. of Shares I % of Holding | No. of Shares % of Holdin,
3F Industries Ltd 356 | §9.74% | 354 69 75%
F  Shares held by promoters at the end of the year i
Promoter's Name Shares held by promolers 9% Change during the
As at31st March, 2024 As at31st March, 2023 year
Nao. of Shares %% of Total Shares No. of Shares 4%, of Tolal Shares
M/s. 3F Industrias Limited R 69.74 35 565000 5574 =
Mr, Amit Dalmia 7 500 007 | 7 500 00?2 -
Promoier's Name Shares held by promoiers 9% Change during the
As at31st March, 2023 31st Magrch, 2022 year
No. of Shares 8% of Tutal Shares No. of Shares % of Total Shares
M /s 3F Industries Limited 35,565 A5 T4 25065 000 6281 6.93
Mr. Amil Dabiia 7.500 002 7.500 0oz >
Note - 12 ; Other Equily
Reserves and surplus
Retained earnings Total other Equity
Particulars
Ralance as at 1 April 2021 -2,960.73 -2,960.73
Ioss lor the Year -497.72 -497.72
fther compeehensiv e 006 -0 0h
Total comprehensive income for the year = -
Ralance as at 31 March 2022 -3,456.51 -2,458 51
Ralance as at 1 April 2022 -3,45851 -3,45851
I.oss for the Year -1,42851 41,426 51
rehensive income 232 232
siehensive income for the year - -
Ralance as at 31 March 2023 -4,885.69 -4,H85.69
Balance as at 1 April z023 -4 8RS 69 -4,885.69
1 Lhe Year -3,370.70 -3370.70
ronmprehrnsive i TS -163 2153 !
Tolal comprehensive e fur the year 3 .
Ralanceasat31 March 2024 -8,25803 -8,258 03

12.1 Nnle:

The aceumulated loss of the Company is stially eroded its netwerth, Th
Pramaters / directars of the company have confirmed th ary finunaciol s
Company have kean preg ared on the bads gf gning concern.

iy contine

nece

o bake steps b revamp ik husir
ded as required, The finand jal stutements of the

<1 aperntions.
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13.1

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024 Rs in Lakhs
As at Asat

PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
(Rs.) (Rs)

Note - 13 : Borrowings
n at An

Term Loans From Bank
Axis Bank (Refer notenn 13.1and 13.2)

orking Capital Loans Fr. il
Axis Bank

Unsecured Loans at Amortised Cost
Repayable on Demand

Lnan From Related Paities (Refer Note )

Loan fram Others

Total

Notes:-

= 434 38

= 47917

14,354.45 11,567.85
P

14,354.45 12,481.40

Security Details for the secured loans taken from Axis Bank Limited
The TL facitity, tagether with interest, liquidated damages. costs and whatsoever paysble to the lenders and their trustees shall be sec ured inter alia by:

a) First pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of the Burrower's all
muvahle assets, Including movable plant and machinery machinery spare
intangihle, goe wdwill, uncalled capital, present and future:
i charge by way of mortgage of the Borro
) First pari-passu charge on entire current assets of the Borrower.
d) Assignment of all book dehts, aperating cash flow

b) First pari-pa

subsidy, of the Borrower, present & future

€) First charge on TRA, DSRAs and other reserves 2

s, tools ond accessories, furniture, fixtur es,vehicles and all other movable assets, present and future,
wer’s all immavahle properties (preseat & fufure) inchiding lease hold rights of Project land;

¢ receivahles, commissions, revenues of whatsoever nature and wherever arising including COM / REC / GBI revenue. MNRE

nd any other bank arcounts of the company maintained for the Project and:

F) First charge by way of zssignment fhypathecation or creation of secut ity interest of -

a. All the rights title. Interest, henefits claims a
{FPA]jMewu\p.rqnﬁum of Understanding {(Moll)
supplemented from time to time. The assignments €
b.All the rights, title, interest benefits. ¢
c. All the rights, title, interest henefits, claims and
provided by any party to the Project Documents and

d. All Insurance coniracts / Insurance prod eeds:

g)Pledge on equity shares representing 30% of the total paid up

during the tenure of the Facility

h)Corporate Guaranies of 3F Industries | rd.
{)Persanal Guarantee of Mr Arunanshu Vijay Kumar Agarwal Dir

15 whatsoever of the Dompany in the Project Documents (including but notlimited to Power Purchase Agieements
for sale of power, 0&M related agresments. Land Sale/Lease Agreements, Service Contracts. ete) all as amended, varied or
hall be duty scknowledged cansented by the relevant counter part ies.if required as per the relevant Project document:
laims and demands whotsoever of the Company in the permits, approvals and clearances pertaining to the Project;

demands whatsosver of the Crmpany in letter of credit, guarantee,performance band, corporate guarantee, bank guarantee

equity shave capital of the Borrewer held by Creative Home Fur nishing Pyt Ltd subject to Banking Regulation Act

ector{Net Worth of Rs 801 Crsas on 31 3.14)

jjPersonal Guarantee of Mr Amit Dalmia, Director The Fixed Assets and current assests shall rank pari passu to the extentof Rs 15 ¢r with working capital facility lenders.

Primary

a)First charge on the entire fived assets and current assests of the company.

Collateyal

a)Fxclusive charge on Deht Service Ressive Ac countiDSRAYpropos=d to be

repayment schedule,

b)Fscrow of receivahles from Punjab State Electriily Bu

Guarantee
Corporate Guarantee of 3F Industries Ltd

Corporate Guarantee of Creative Garments Private Limited

The hank has sanctioned additional working capital credit fac

created with our bank DSRA amount would be two quarters installment to be adjusted as per

\ard/Punjab State Power Carporation Ltd.

flity under Emergency Credit Line Guarantee St heme introduced by the Government of India, through the Ministry

of Finance. Ohligation of the additional facility and shall be secured, inter alia, by Security interest over the assets as Specified in Existing Financing facility of Term Loans From

Rank and Cash Credit Faciliry,




13.2 Payment Term
Payment Term of Term Loan From Axis Bank 43 CR RTL-10 5094 of Sanction amount of inan, Total repayment made actually in the FY 23-24 Re 6 A5 crores.
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Payment Term of Working capital credit Facility 10CR-12 M MCLR + 1% of Sanction amount of loan Total repayment made actually in the FY 23-24 Rs.7.56 crores.

Details of Current & Non Current As at
31st March, 2024
(Rs.)
For Rs 43 Crores
Current

Non- Current -

ﬂ ores
Current
Non- Current =

Current
Non- Current

Asat
31st March, 2024
(Bs.)
Note - 14 ; Lease liahilities
Lease liabitity -
Total —
As at
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024
(Rs.)
Note - 15 : Other Financial Liahilities
Fayahle fur Capital Expenditure -
Payahle for Energy Shat e* 2,RA2.39
Total 2,862.39
(*Punjab Energy Development Authority)
Note - 16 : Provisions
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity * 2188
Total 21.88
* Refer Note No. 35
Note - 17 : Borrowing
ns Repayable on D nd
From Banks (Refer Note no 17.1) 7BA 34
Current maturities of Long term borrowings (Refer note no.13.1and 13.2) +
Total 786.34

Rate of Interest For Axis Bank CC A/c is 12.70%,repayment is on Demand Basis

17.1 Security Details
a)First charge on the entire fixed asseis and current assests of the company.
b)Collzteral_Exclusive charge on Debt Service Reserve Account(DSRA)proposed to be created with axis bank.
c) Guarantee
i) Corporate Guarantee of 3F Indusiries Ltd
ii) Corporate Guarantee of Crealive Garments Private Limited(Available for CC Limit of Rs acrs)
i) Personal Guarantes of Mr. Arunanshu Vijay Kumar Agarwal

As at
31st March, 2023
(Rs.)

22381
434.38
658.19

250.00
47917
729.17

473.81
91355

As at

31st March, 2023

(Rs)

Asat

31st March, 2023

(Rs.)

1,668.77

1,668.77

22.54
22.54

501.62
473.81

975.42




Note - 18 : Lease liabilities
Lezse liability

Total

Note - 19 : Trade payables

Unsecured :

Due to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises
Fur Goods
For Services

Due to Others
For Goods

For Services

Total

Trade Payables ageing schedule: As at 31st March,2024

2091 447.69
63378 18384
654.69 631.53

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME - - - - -
(ii) Others 652.29 2.40 - - 654.69
(1) Disputed dues- MSME = - - B =
(iv) Disputed dues - Others 2 = - N _
Trade Payables ageing schedule: As at 31st March,2023
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years | Total

(i) MSME - # E < _
(ii) Others 625 50 603 - - 63153

(1) Disputed dues- MSME

(iv) Disputed dues - Others

Note - 20 : Other Financial Liabilities

Other Liabilities
Advance From Debtors

Total

Note - 21 : Other Current Liabilities
Siatutory dues

Total

Note - 22 : Provisions
Gratuity

Provision for Expenses
Leave Provision

Total

3943 93.93
001 3
39.44 93.93
8237 7.85
82.37 7.95

4.15 599
1472 250
18.87 8.49
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

PARTICULARS

Note - 23 : Revenue from operations
Revenue from operations

Revenue from sale of Power

Revenue from sale of Twine

Revenue from sale of Fuel

Total

Note - 24 : Other income
Interest Income
Sundry Balance Written back

Other Income
Total

Note - 25 : Cost of materials consumed
Raw Material Consumed

Opening Stock

Add: Purchases

Add: Direct Exp

Less: Stack Damaged due to Flood (Refer Note 31.1)
Less: Closing stock
Total Cost of Materials Consumed

Note - 26 : Changes in inventories of Stock in Trade
Opening Stock
Less: Closing stock

Note - 27 : Employee benefit expenses
Salaries & wages

Contractor Salary

Gratuity Cost

Staff welfare expenses

Total

Note - 28 : Finance costs

a) Interest Expenses

On Borrowings

Interest on Loans - Banks,Financial Institutions
Interest on Loans - Related Parties

On Others

Interest on Loans - Other Parties

[nterest on lease liability - At Amortised Cost

b) Other Finance Costs
Bank Charges
Processing Fees

Total

Rs in Lakhs
Asat Asat
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
(Rs.) (Rs.)

5,057.80 4,663.94
69.39 118.60
70.35 -

5,197.54 4,782.53
22.75 21.63

- 19.46

9.82 5.73

32.57 46.81
3,533.32 3,279.89
6,102.76 3,300.45
650.99 607.94
10,287.06 7,188.28

3,642.00 -

3,468.48 3,533.32

3,176.59 3,654.97

0.16 0.18
0.70 0.16
-0.54 0.02
412.61 415.25
17.58 2593
6.00 5.96
27.43 24.63
463.62 471.78
207.91 252.40
- 129.69
759.41 3.49
037 1.55
967.70 387.13
-2.74 0.12

- 68.60
964.96 455.85
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

PARTICULARS

Note - 29 : Depreciation and amortization expenses

Depreciation on tangible Assets
Amortization on Intangible Assets
Depreciation on Leased assets

Note - 30: Other expenses
Repairs and Maintenance
Plant & Machinery
Buildings

Vehicles

Others

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Business Promotion Expenses

Cash Discount on Power sale
Computer Expenses

Consultancy and Professional charges
Contributional Share to PEDA
Consumption of Stores and Spares
Fuel Centres Lease and Maintenance
[nsurance

Interest on GST

Interest on TDS

License, Registration & Shop Establishment Exp
Miscellaneous Expenses

Other Expenses

Power

Printing and Stationery

Renewal Fees

Rates & Taxes, Fine

Rent Expenses

ROC Fees

Telephone, Internet Expenses
Transportation Expenses

Travelling Expenses

Vehicle Petrol & Diesel Consumption
Donation Exp

Water Charges

Loss Sales of Machinary

Provision of ECL

Auditors Remuneration
Audit fee

Tax Audit

Other Matters

Total

Note - 31: Exceptional items {refer Note 31.1)
Loss on stock due to fload

Total

Note 31.1 - Loss on stock due to flood

such damage.

During the year, in the manth of July 2023 to Ortober 2023, due to torrential rainfalls the company had |
36,42,00,000 due flooding in the area. The stock of Rs 36,42,00,000 had become absolute and the company has written off the said stock in the books of
accounts. Though the stock was insured but since flooding did not fall under a natura

Asat Asat
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
(Rs.) (Rs.)
370.34 383.10
0.22 0.16
12.64 2491
383.19 408.17
31.24 128.31
1.23 1.43
1.59 1.98
11.62 2415
2.29 -
0.01 25.75
1.29 1.18
36.19 40.00
610.15 582.99
121.02 -2.53
94.14 59.78
36.67 41.09
- 0.00
0.06 -
273 64.11
2.39 2.45
391 3.29
10.72 8.93
2.25 2.19
0.74 0.75
1.26 0.12
11.03 14.57
0.01 0.06
2.35 2.61
432 11.65
10.08 16.73
13.24 1652
0.22 1.10
55.75 -
6.86 -
7.50 -
1.75 1.75
0.50 0.50
0.25 0.25
1,085.34 1,051.71
3,642.00
3,642.00 .

| calamity the company could not make any i

ost 1,84,107 MT (qty) amounting to Rs.

nsurance claim against
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Note
No |Notes on Financial Statements (Continued)

32 LEASE
. As at Asat
Particulars
31st March, 2024 | 31stMarch, 2023
Land taken on operating lease:
The Company has significant operating Jeases for premises, These lease arrangements
range from a period between 6 months to different no of years, which include both
cancellable and non-cancellable leases. Most of the leases are renewable for further i )
periods on mutually agrecable terms and also include escalation clauses.
With respect to non-cancellable operating lease, the future minimum lease payment as at
Ralance Sheet date is as under:
For a period not later than one y=ar S 5.49
For a period later than one year - -
33 Earnings per share (EPS)
. Asat Asat
ticu
Proeiculis 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Profit/(Loss) after tax -337,233,743 -142,718,464
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (Basic) 51,000,000 51,000,000
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (Diluted) 51,000,000 51,000,000
Nominal value per share 10 10
Basic earnings per share -6.61 -2.80
Diluted earnings per share -6.61 -2.80

34 |Related party disclosure

a) List of related party

i Key management personnel (KMP)

Mr.Amit Dalmia - Director

Mr.Sanjay Goenka - Director

Mr.Sushil Goenka - Director

Mr.Manoj Maoorjani - Director - Fxpired 22/09/2022

Mrs.Vedanti Vartak - Company secretary - Resigned on 02-06-2023
Mrs.Neha Bhattad - Company secretary - Appointed on 15-05-2024

ii Holding company:
3F Industries Limited - Holding company

iii Other related parties:
Entity which has significant influence
Creative Estates LLP

iv. Entity over which KMP are interested:
3F Advanced Systems Private Limited

3F Oil Palm Private Limited

Accio Glabal Private Limited

Alluvium Beauty And Skincare Private Limited
Asia Pacific Commodities Limited

Asian Renewable Energy Private Limited
Brand Spring Ventures LLP

Creative Global Services Private Limited
Dazzala Textile Lip

Encompass Design India Private Limited

(i) As per Ind AS 24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below:
List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and rel

Essgee Management Holding Private Limited
Home Craft Online Private Limited
Hyderabad Bicycling Club

Kottu Oil Private Limited

Omnitex Industries (India) Limited

Oth Online Private Limited

Simhapuri Agro Products Private Limited
Speciality Rubbers Private Limited

The Selvent Extractors Association Of India

ationships:
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b) Transactions undertaken / balances outstanding with related parties in the ordinary course of business

Particulars

31st March, 2024

Due to Mrs.Vedanti Vartak
Due to 3F Industries Limited (included in unsecured loans)

Due to Creative Estates LLP (included in unsecured loans)

13,619.45

735.00

Particulars Asat Asat
31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023

Mrs.Vedanti Vartak
Remuneration 1.24 7.47
Gratuity 1.02
3F Industries Limited
1.Loan Taken 2,861.60 3,909.45
2 L.oan Repaid 75.00 -
3, Jssue of Share Capital -
4, Interest on Loan - 129.69
¢) Closing balances with related parties in the ordinary course of business

As at As at

| 31stMarch, 2023 |
0.63
10,832.85

735.00

Post Retirement Benefit Plans
Gratuity

of Employee Benefit Schemes:

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in
continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payabl
is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary
years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions to recognised funds in India.

e on retirement/termination
multiplied for the number of

As per Actuarial Valuation as on 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023 and recognised in the financial statements in respect

Defined Benefit Plan:

Gratuity (Funded)

Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligation

Asat
31st March, 2024

Asat
31st March, 2023

Defined Benefit Obligation
Fair Value Of Plan Assets

Net Liability(Asset)

26.03

2853

26.03

28.53

Profit and loss account for the peried

Asat
31st March, 2024

Asat
31st March, 2023

In Income Statement

Net(Income)/Expense for the period Recognised in OCI

Current Service Cost 3.96 4.23
Past service cost and loss/(gain) on curtailments and settlement -
Interest Cost 2.04 1.73
Net Cost charge to P&L 6.00 5.96
Other Comprehensive Income for the current period Asat As at
31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023

Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations:
Due to Change in financial assumptions 0.46 -1.02
Due to Change in demographic assumption = *
Due to Change in experience adjustments 1.17 -1.31
Return on Plan Assets Z 9

1.63 -2.32
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Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation Asat Asat
31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation as at the Beginning
of the Year 2853 26.07
Transfer in/(out) obligation - -
Current Service Cost 3.96 423
Interest Cost 2.04 1.73
Net Acturial (Gain)/Loss
Due to Change in financial assumptions 0.46 -1.02
Due to Change in demographic assumption = -
Due to Change in experience adjustments 1.17 -1.31
Past Service Cost
Benefits Paid -10.13 -1.18
Present Value of Obligations as at end of the year 26.03 28.53
Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Assets Asat Asat
31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the Beginning of the Year 5 -
Interest Incmoe - -
Expected Return on Plan Assets excluding interest income above
Net Acturial (Gain) /Loss - -
Benefits Paid - -
Employer's Contribution - -
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the End of the Year - -
Acturial Assumptions Asat Asat
31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Discount Rate(per annum) 7.20% pa 745% p.a
as n
Withdrawal Rates 10.00% p.aatall | 10.00% p.aatall
ages ages
Rate of Escalation in Salary(per annum) 7.50% p.a 7.50% p.a
Contingent Liabilities and Comimitments
Asat As at
particulars 31st March, 2024 | 31stMarch, 2023
Contingent Liabilities
Income Tax Demand For AY 12-13 23.77 23.77
Income Tax Demand For AY 13-14 39.43 39.43
Total 63.20 63.20

Market Risk

Credit Risk

The management has preferred an appeal before the income tax authorities and are of the view
in the favour of the company, therefore there would not be any impact on the going concern of the company.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument w
market prices. [n the case of the Company, market risk primarily impacts financial instruments measured at fair value
through profit or loss. There are no financial instruments of Viaton Group which are subje

that matter would be decided

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 107 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”: Financial risk management

The Viaton Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to finance Viaton Group’s operations and to support
financial assets includes trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.
Viaton Group is exposed to Market Risk, Credit risk and Liquidity risk.

its operations. Viaton Group's principal

ill fluctuate because of changes in

ct to market risk.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to Viaton Group if a custamer fails to meet its contractual obligation. Management

believes the credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is low because the counterparties are with sound creditworthiness.
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time orata
reasonable price. The Company’s management is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. [n
addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. The Company manages its liquidity
requirement by analysing the maturity pattern of the Company’s cash flow of financial assets and financial liabilities . The
Campany’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through issuance of equity shares.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted

payments.

Particulars Upto 1 Year 1to 2 Years 2+ Years Total

As at 31st March, 2024

(i) Borrowings # 786.34 3,521.60 10,832.85 15,140.79
(ii) Lease liahilities - - - -
(iii) Trade payables 654.69 - - 654.69
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 39.44 2,862.39 - 2,901.83
Total Liabilities 1,48047 6,383.99 10,832.85 18,697.31
As at 31st March, 2023

(i) Borrowings # 975.42 913.55 11,567.85 13,456.83
(ii) Lease liabilities 549 - - 5.49
(iii) Trade payables 631.53 - - 631.53
(iv) Other Financial Liahilities 96.43 1,668.77 - 1,765.20
Total Liabilities 1,708.88 2,582.32 11,567.85 15,859.05

# The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial liabilities including interest
that will be paid on those liabilities upto the maturity of the instruments, ignoring the refinancing options available with the
Company. The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for labilities is subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interestrates determined at the end of the reporting period.

Other disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 107 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”:
a.Category-wise classification for applicable financial assets and financial liabilities:

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1): Inputs are quoted prices (unadijusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. This includes Cash and cash equivalents, and borrowings from banks,

Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2): Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liahility, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This includes
Trade Receivable , Other Financial Assets , Borrowing other than bank borrowings , Trade payable and Other Financial
Liablity.

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): Inputs are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are
neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on
available market data. There are no Financial Instruments fall under Level 3 catogary.

The following table summarizes financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis and financial assets
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value disclosures are required) :
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Fair value hierarchy as at 31st March, 2024

Quoted prices Significant Significant
: " Carrying Value as at |inactive observable Unobservable
Particular's 31.03.2024 markets inputs inputs
(Level1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial Assets
i) Cash and cash equivalents 24.38 24.38 -
ii) Receivables 1,533.72 - 1,533.72
iii) Other Financial Assets 77.93 - 77.93
Total Financial Assets 1,636.03 24.38 1,611.65
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15,140.79 786.34 14,354.45
(ii) Lease liabilities - - =
(iii) Trade payables 654.69 - 654.69
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 2,901.83 - 2,901.83
Total Financial Liablities 18,697.31 786.34 17,910.97
Fair value hierarchy as at 31st March, 2023
Quoted prices Significant Significant
. ; Carrying Value asat |in active observable Unobservable
Particular's 31.03.2023 markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial Assets
i) Cash and cash equivalents 29.50 29.50 -
ii) Receivables 540.34 - 540.34
iii) Other Financial Assets 62.68 - 62.68
Total Financial Assets 632.51 29.50 603.01
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13,456.83 1,888.97 11,567.85
(ii) Lease liabilities 5.49 - 549
(ii) Trade payables 631.53 - 631.53
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 1,762.70 - 1,762.70
Total Financial Liablities 15,856.55 1,888.97 13,967.58
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Note:

i)'No financial assets and liabilities has been measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and fair through
profit and loss.

ii)'Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other payables as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023
approximate the fair value because of their short term nature. The carrying amounts of loans given and borrowings taken for
short term are considered to be close to the fair value.

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. (MSME)

The Company has during the year sent out letters seeking confirmations from its suppliers whether they fall under the
category of micro, small and medium enterprises as mentioned under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act 2006

Significant Significant
pavticulars ob-servable Uno_bservahle
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3)
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining Nil Nil
unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year;
The amount of interest paid by the Company along with the
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed Nil Nil
day during the year;
The amount of intercst due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed Nil Nil
day during the year) but without adding the inlerest specified under
this Act;
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of Nil Nil
the year;
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in Nil Nil
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise.

Hedges of foreign currency risks and Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company has no foreign currency exposure as on 31st Mar 24 & 31st Mar 23.

Additional regulatory and other information as required by the Schedule III to the Companies Act 2013

1. Property, Plant and Equipment,Intangible Assets & Capital WIP

The title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company
as at the balance sheet date, In respect of immovable properties of land and building that have been taken on lease and disclosed as
fixed assets in the financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the Company.

The Company has not1 evalued its Property, Plantand Equipment (including Right-of-Use Asset) since the Company has adopted cost
model as its accounting policy to an entire class of Property, Plant and Equipment in accordance with Ind AS 16.

The Company has not revalued its Intangible Asset since the Company has adopted cost model as ils accounting policy to an entire class
of Intangible Asset in accordance with Ind AS 38.
The Company does not have any Carite] WIP or Intangible assets under development as at the reporting date.

2. Borrowings From Banks
The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken as at the

reporting date.

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupecs, in aggregate, from hanks on the basis of security]
of current assets. The Quarter end statements filed by the Company with the banks are substantially in agreement with the books of

accounts, except in the folluwing cases.
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(Rs.Lakhs)
. ; As per returns filed
Particulars A p ;
s per financials with banks Difference Reason
As on June'2023
Spares & consumable
Inveniories 3,29050 2,960.58 329.92 | notinclude in Stock
Statement
Short creditors
Trade Payables 24203 241,59 pigg|| S atock
statement adjustment
entry
Unbill revenue not
Trade Receivable 946.47 930.55 15.92 | consider in Stock
statement
As on Sept'2023 -
Spares & consumahle
Inventories 3,648.32 3,32580 322.52 | notinclude in Stock
Statement
Short creditors
Trade Payables 37.88 35.18 gy | henminsat
statement adjustment
entry
Unbill revenue not
Trade Receivable 874.10 87338 0.72 | consider in Stock
statement
As on Dec'2023
Spares & consumable
Inventories 3,641.20 3,468.16 173.04 | notinclude in Stock
Statement
Trade Payables 763.59 763.59 - NA
Unhill revenue not
Trade Receivable 721.95 706.03 15.92 | consider in Stock
statement
As on March'2024
Spares & consumable
Inventories 0.03 3,439.05 -3,439.02 | notinclude in Stock
Statement
Excess creditors
Trade Payables 137.11 14253 543 shown in .srm:k
statement adjustment
entry
Unhill revenue not
Trade Receivable 1,541.22 1,518.18 23.04 consider in Stock
statement
3. Loans and Advances
The Company has not granted any loan or advance in the nature of loan to promaters, directors, KMPs and other related partics that are
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment
4, There are no pending charge creation / sal isfaction registration with ROC by the company.
5.The company not has any Relationship with struck off companies during the year.
6.Contribution to political parties during the year 2023-24 is Rs. Nil (previous year Rs. Nil).
7.The Company has not been declared as Wilful defaulter by Banks/Financial Institution/Other Lender.
8.The company had not entered into any Scheme’s of arrangements with the competent authority in terms of Sec. 230 to 237 of the
Companies Act, 2013,
9.There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessiments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
10.No proceedings or notice received against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and the rules made thereunder.
11.The Company did not trade or invest in Crypto Currency or virtual currency during the financial year. Hence, disclosures relating to
it are notapplicable.
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In the opinion of the Board :

Networth Erosion

Audit Trail

Previous year figures

relevant notes.

Viaton Energy Private Limited

12. The Provision related to Expenditure on Corporate Secial Responsibility (CSR) as per Setion 135 is not applicable to the company.

The Trade Receivables/Payables, Trade Advances, Capital Advances, Deposits and Loans are subject to reconciliation, confirmation and
consequential adjustments that may arise on recanciliation which may have major impact. Thus the balances of receivables and
Payables as well as Loan & Advances have been taken as per the books of accounts submitted by the Campany and are subject to
confirmation from the respective parties.

The accumulated loss of the Company is substantially eroded its net worth. The Company continues to take steps to revamp its business
operations. Promotors / directors of the company have confirmed that necessary financial support will be provided as required.The
financial statements of the Company have been prepared on the basis of going concern,

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its baoks of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, which has
a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software. Further, during our audit, based on our exa mination which included test checks, the audit trail facility has been
operating throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software and we did not come across any instance of audit
trail feature being tampered with during the course of our audit.

Previous years’ figurcs have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary, to conforin to current year's classification.
group ¥

Significant Events after the Reporting Period
There were no significant adjusting events that occurred subsequent to the reporting period other than the events disclosed in the

For V.K.Beswal & Associates
Chartered Accountants

C.A. Kunal V Beswal
Partner
Membership Number- 1310

Place : Mumbai
Date : 31/08/2024
UDIN :

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Viaton Energy Private Limited

P

T -

Sushi Goetm'ﬁ/

Amit Dalmia
Director - Director
DIN:00210919 DIN: 00533097
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46 Ratio
SrNo |Particulars Numerator Rs Denominator Rs Siandh | GIMaEa3 | GaVarencd | TeeeonfervarEdce oy Mot
then 25%
1 Current Ratio Current Assets 5 167 €5 |Current Liabiiities 1.581.71 327 386 15.44 NA
(In times)
2 Debt Equity Ratio Tolal Liabilities Sharehaolder's Equity
(In times) Total Nutside Lizbliities 17 730 43 |Total Shareholders Equity -3,158.03 (5 95) 74.17 108 03 |Less of the company increased as
compared to last year due to stuck
wioff and other operstions! cost
3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio  |Net Operating Tncome Debt Service
(In times) Net Profit after tax + non-cash 433,06 |Current Debt Obligation 15,140.79 290 =4.85 163.25 |Loss of the company incressed as
{Tnterest & Lease payment+ cornpered to last vear due to stock
Frincigal Repayment) w/uff and other apecalional cost
s + Infermstrobher
4 Return on Equity Ratio Profil for the period Ava. Sharehaoldars Equity
(In %) Net Profil after tax {Reginhing sharsholders’ equity -1,471 86 =101 007 327.75 |Loss of the company ncressad 3s
pieference dividend (if any) + Ending sharehoiders' equity) compared to last year due to stock
+2 w/off and ather aperational cost
5 Inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of Goods sold Averaae Inventory
(In times) {Opening Stack + Purchases) - 3,176.59 i ng Siock + Closing 3,500 90 0.91 1.07 16 43 ik
Closing Stock W2
& Trade Recsivables Turnover Net Credit Sales Avarage Trade Recsivables
Ratio
(In times) Cradit Sales 5,137.54 |(Begining Trade Recejsablas + 1.037.03 5.01 406 -22.49
Ending Trade Receivahies) / 2 NA
7 Trade Payables Turnover Total Purchases Average Trade Payables
Ratio
(In times) Annual Net Credit Purchazes 6,160 21 |(Begining Trade Payahles + 643.11 9.59 3.06 -212.15 |Due to heavy loss of Stock we do
Ending Trade Pavabies) / 2 heawy purchses
8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio Net Sales Average Working Capital
Total Szi#s - Sales Return 5,187.54 ant Aszets - Current 3,509.97 1.45 0.97 -48.53 |Major repairs & heavy rains affected
i the Revenue. Hence due to low sales
(Tn times) the ratio has been declined.
9 Net Profit Ratio Net Profit Net Sales
(In %) Profit After Tax {3,372.34)|Sales 5,167.54 -6488 4% -2984.16% -116 43 [Loss of the company inuessed 3s
compared to last year due to
increase in raw material cost & Less
generation due to major repeir in
Plant.
10 |Raturn on Capital emploved EBIT Capital Empioved *
(In %) Profit before Inverest and Taees (1,224,285} | Capital Empluved = Tangible Net 14,080 69 -7.92% -8.78
Worth + Total fiehit + Deferred Tax NA
Lishility
EBIT 2.023.00 2,022.00
Earning (3.372.34) -1,427.18
Add
Interest 9E£7.70
Tax 1.18 -99.37
EBIT 1,224.25)_ -1,139.43
Capital Emploved
Total Assets 15682 16,110
Less
Currant Labilities 1.582 1,723
14 081 14 387
Working Capital
Current Assats 5,168 6.657
Less
Current L'abilities 1582 1,723
S S Y ET
® Canital Emoloved could be treated three wavs
Total Aszsts - Current Labiiities
Flesd Azsets + Working Canital
Eauity 4 Long Term Debl
®%x%  QOTas per GN

RO = (MVT1) — MVITO) — Sum [l
{MuiTE) + Sum [wit) * Lty

where, T1 = End of time period

c date falling between T1 2nd TO
MIT1) = Market Value at T1

My( 70} = Market Value 2t 70

Cit) = Cash inflow, cash outflow an specific date

Wit) = Weight of the net cash flow (Le. eilher net Infinw or net oulfivw) on day

penes may

seavide ROT secararsly for sach sset cizse (e.q., equity, Tt

Y, caleutsted as (M1 - t1/T1

xed income, money markst, etc.).




